GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
B e R e e L ]

PR g T et e e Ty
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT CUNYENTION, SHOW & ¢PORIS FACILITIES

Agenda

Board of Directors

Friday, September 5, 2014

Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers

300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, MI

1. Call to Order Steve Heacock
2. Minutes of August 1, 2014 Action
3. Committee Reports
A. Operations Committee
i. Experience Grand Rapids Report Tom Bennett
B. Finance Committee
i. Monthly Financial Reports
a. Acceptance of Consolidated July 2014 Action
Financial Statements
b. SMG - Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® Information
July 2014 Financial Statements
ii. FY 2014 Audit Plan—BDO USA, LLP Information
4. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information
5. Public Comment
6. Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Friday, October 3, 2014,
Following the CAA Operations Committee Meeting



Item 2

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, August 1,2014

1. Call to Order

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer, Richard Winn,
recorded the meeting minutes. Agenda item 3.A.i. was corrected to reflect that the amendment affected
the FY 2015 capital budget.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairperson
George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs
Charlie Secchia
Floyd Wilson, Jr.
Rick Winn

Members Absent: Lew Chamberlin

Staff/Others: Tom Bennett Experience Grand Rapids
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Tim Gortsema Grand Rapids Griffins
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Eddie Tadlock SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White CAA

2, Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion by Mr. Heartwell, support by Mr. Winn, to approve the June 6, 2014, Minutes. Motion carried.
3. Committee Reports
A, Operations Committee
i. Amendment to FY 2015 Capital Budget

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve an amendment to the FY 2015 capital budget to
carry over 3144,00 from the FY 2014 budget. Motion carried.

ii. Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License
Motion by Mr. Winn, support by Ms. Klohs , to approve filing an application with the Michigan Liquor

Control Commission for special liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food
Festival. Motion carried.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 1,2014 -2

B. Finance Committee
i. Monthly Financial Reports
a. Acceptance of Consolidated June 2014 Financial Statements

Mr. Winn presented the consolidated summary financial report. The Van Andel Arena® FY 2014 budget
forecast a current-year “Net Proceeds” decrease of ($637,807) from prior-year performance. At fiscal
year-end, “Net Proceeds” reported a decline of ($921,180), a drop of ($283,373) from budget. The
DeVos Place® FY 2014 budget forecast a current year “Net Proceeds” decrease of ($375,027) from prior-
year performance. At fiscal year-end, “Net Proceeds” are reported at a decline of ($94,704), an
improvement of $+280,323 over budget. Net parking revenues ended 6.4% ahead of prior year. The
Consulting Services is over budget for the year and will be covered partially by a contingent allowance in
the “Supplies/Other” account budget.

Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to accept the Consolidated June 2014 Financial
Statements. Motion carried.

Mr. White presented and explained significant variances of the FY 2014 budget to actual. Mr. White
introduced a draft financial dashboard for review and comment.

b. SMG Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® June 2014
Financial Statements

The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items. June concluded
a challenging year for the Van Andel Arena®, as concert activity overall fell below expectations and
historical averages. During the month, the Arena hosted a sold-out Bruno Mars concert and heads into
the new fiscal year with three additional sold-out shows for the first quarter. DeVos Place® concluded
another successful fiscal year, as revenue finished much higher than budget and exceeded last year, s
well. Expenses came in higher than budget and prior year overall, as utility expense ended the year
almost $600,000 over budget. Deloitte & Touche begins field work next week.

4, Directors and Officers Insurance Renewal

Staff reported that the renewal premium is $18,500, which is -4.6% less than the expiring premium of
$19,401.

Motion by Mr. Wilson, support by Mr. Heartwell, to approve renewal of the directors’ and officers’
liability insurance. The motion carried unanimously.

5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

Mr. MacKeigan stated that utilities should be normalizing in June. SMG staff continues to look at utility
options and alternatives moving forward and may have a recommendation in a couple of months.

8. Public Comment

None.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 1,2014 -3

9. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 9:25 a.m. The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, September 5,
2014, following the CAA Finance Committee meeting.

Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary



Iltem 3.B.i.a.

&~

Vg

(o8]

agdeq

¥I0T ‘1€ LIne
ja0day] [erouURUL] p)jepI[osSuo))
ALIoy)ny BUIY/UOIIUIAUO))

£yuno)) yuddf-spidey] pue.ax)

s[qeredwo)) s1B(-03-189 X
SJUNOJOY SANRISIUTWIPY

siqeredwo) syeg-03-189 §
1se010,] uIfjoy
@39e[d SOA(

s1qeredwo)) eq-03-183 X
1580210, 3UI[[OY

@EUSLY [opUY UBA
s1qeredwo)) s1eJ-01-189 X
180210, SuI[[0Y

Anpoe Aq Arewrwing

preoquse(]



(ZLL'sy) ¢ (rv'ov) $  (s00°0v) $ aouejeg punj uo umeiq - }aN
(000°s2) (000°'s2) (e6zz'8Y) Juswase|daysreday/epded
£88°9 $ (rrp'sii) $ (622°'L6E) $ awodu| bupesado

jenjoy jobpng Jea) J0lid
zes'8¢T ¢ 882'6.C $ 9z0'ZLL $ L a K £15°92¢ $ 0.6'0LL $ aWooU| JUBA]
0SSl 082°'LL 008‘¥ Zy8'9l ovz'0Z G59°9 aduepuapy
(X4 8L 9 e £ 6l STV

[endy umm—u:m Jea) 10lid jenjoy uwm—u:m Jea\ Jolid

apel] /UoiudAuo) SJUdA3 ||V

®a392k|d SOA3d

8sv‘'zoz  $ 69622 $ 0$ 8s¥‘'c9z  $ 696222 $ 0$ BWOoJU| JUBAT

oave'6l 00S°se 0 9re’'6l 005°S2 0 aduepuany

[4 € 0 [4 £ 0 SjuaA3g
[enjoy jebpng 1eaA Jolid lenjoy 1abpng 1ea A J0lid

Ha2U0H SJUSaA] IV

®BU3IY |9puy Uep

y10Z ‘L¢ AInp
aje-o0]-J1ea A
pleoqyse(q |eloueuly

w

$IEITMOYE 31ACd3 ¥ MOHS "NONINIANDD INSWNIVISILN

ALIOHLINY V¥NIAVY / NOIINIANO

lﬂu

AINNOD INDFSAigve ANVID



(¥1/1/8) s1orohued 199foad 1eak-1oud jo 900y 1§ pue
“(¥1/91/5) suotreAoual a3e)s [[eH 2ouBULIO}Iad SOAST 000°00€$ snid “(171/9/9) 198pnq [eutdLio sapnpou] ()

(896°9¢L°1) §$ (S66'LT1'’D) $  (Se6°LZI‘T) $  (8L8‘60I‘T) §  (LII‘SD) S
(s9t*505°D) w (000°v€8°1) w (000°VE8°T) (000°608°1) (000°52)
L6Y'SSL S00°90L S00°90L TT1°669 £88°9
(rze‘oLy) (915°189) (915°189) (01.°899) (908°C1)
(9L5°€€9) (915°15L) (915°15L) (o1,°8¢€L) (908°Z1)
759791 000°0L1 000°0L1 000°0L1 -
PG ESy 998‘v9¥ 998‘b9p WYSI9 (9Ls‘0sT)
(008°st) (59Z°19) (s9Z°19) (59Z°19) -
89L°L08 000918 000918 €LS‘C18 LTV'T
(sZ0°80¢) (698°667) (698°662) (998°9t'1) (c00°¢s1)
(Lgz's91) (Lsz'oL1) (Lsz'oLn) (LET'9S1) (0zo‘v1)
(S¥Z°001°9) (rssises‘s) (b55°5€8°) (198°2ZH°S) (€69°C11)
LS 096°S$ TY6°SOL'S TV6'SOL'S LETTEY'S 01LELT
SLY'SLL §S9°778 SS9°778 06£7S9 S9T'0LY
(95L°8L) (459°L8) ($59°L8) (¥59°L8) -
P1°6S1 r16S1 1651 788l 79T€1
060°569 SOI‘ISL S9I°ISL 291°v6S €00°LS1
(878°391) (Lsz'oL1) (Lsz'oLn) (LET9ST) (0zo'v1)
(b aaa X3) (€6L°T56°C) (€6L°T56°€) (£0Z°059°€) (06s5°20€)
7€€°989Y § SIZVL8Y § SITYL8'Y $  TO9'00V'y $ €19°¢Ly §
dea ) Jolag «uw.—:.m Jewnsy 1023 3e-03-1edx
aea X -{Inyg 0€/9-1/8 1€/L - /L
P10 Ad S10Z Ad
$107 ‘1€ AIng

S10T ‘0€ dungp Suipuy Je3X [EISI
JPQ/ANEY Aq Arewiung

:S910N

samyipuadxq jende)) Jo 19N S)nsay
sarypuadxd [ende)

sunesad(/spaadoag N eIoL

3P0 PN
sasuadxyg
SONUAAYY

PWOo

dAd Jo (350D) spaadoad 1N
KjaJes ueLnSIpad
Sunjreq
sso SuneiedQ 19N
99,] 2AnuadUJ -
$99,] Juswadeuey aseq -
sani[ioe - sasuadxy -
SONULAYY - SupessdQ
J3)UI)) UOTIUIAUO)) IIB]J SOAI(

VVA Jo (3150D) spaadoid 19N
K193eg uBLISIPad
3unjred
(sso7) swosuj Sunerad 19N
99,] 9ANUAdY] -
$99,] Juswadeuey aseq -
sani[Ioey - sasuadxy -
SONULASY - Sunerad
BUAIY [3pUY UBA

LAuogny eudly/uoludIAuL)) Ajuno)) Jud)-spidey puerr)



(rigr) $ (800°0vy) $ (566°'LTI') $  (8969¥L°1) §
(000°52) (62T°3h) (000°¥€8°1) (S9+°505°7)
£88°9 (6LL°16€) S00°90L L6Y*8SL
L*9S (908°Z1) (685°62) (s°€7) (915°18S) (bze‘oLy)
L'9S (908°Z1) (685°62) 9'81 (915°15L) (9L5°€€9)
- - - St 000°0L1 759°291
TsE (9Ls‘0s1) (99¢°2€0) v'T 998‘p9p £P6'SSP
- - - 611 (s97°19) (008°st)
(z'8) LTV'T V9T 01 000°918 89L°L08
6'¥€ (g00°¢s1) (600°5€2) 9T (698°662) (s20°80¢)
8l (0zo'v1) (zLLgn) Al (Lsz'oL1) (LET'891)
L'y (€69°C1t) (9s1v6€) €v) (yssise8s) (s¥T001°9)
€8S 01L°€LTS 616CLI (€v) TP6°SOL’S LSH096°S$
TISET S9T'0LI (bz8621) 1’9 $S9°7T8 SLY'SLL
- - - €11 (459°L8) (95L°8L)
(0°09) 9T°€1 ¥T59T 00 PP1°6S1 vr1°6S1
002 €00°LS1 (8v€°951) 'S S9I°1SL 060°S69
8l (0zo‘v1) (zLLen) 80 (Lsz'oL1) (828°891)
¥'e (065°20€) (Z¥9°262) e (€6L°T56°€) W1v'Tes'e)
961T €I9°CLy  $ 990°0S1$ oy SITYLSY § T€€°989°y §
J3uey) IS/L- /L IS/L- VL a3uey) 198png [eury
adeyuddsag S10T Ad $10Z7 Ad adeyuansag S10Z Ad $107 Ad
Jeq-0]-18IX jenauy

S10Z ‘o€ dunp Suipuy JedX JI0J SPUaJ ] [eroueul,y
JPO/ANdE] 4q Arewwmng Ja3png

Luoyny eudldy/uonpusaAuno)) Huno)) yudd-spidey puesn

sanjipuadxy [ende)) Jo 19N sInsY
sanypuadxq rended

sunesad(/spasadoad 19N [e10L

13130 1N
sasuadxg
SaNUSASY

Py

dAd Jo (3s0D) spaddoad PN
Kjayes ueLnSapad
Subjreq
sso uneradQ 19N
994 2AnUADY] -
$99,] JuswdFeuR Iseq -
saniIoe, - sasuadxy -
sanuaAdy - Sunerado
JII)UID) UOTIUIAUCY) IdB]J SOA(

VVA Jo (350D) spasdold 3dN
Kya5eS URLISOPd
Bunjred
(ssoT) swodsuj SuneradO 19N
99,] 2AnUdY] -
599 JuswoFeury aseq -
sanI[Ioe - sasuadxy -
SONuaAYY - SuneredQ
BUAIY [9pUy UEA



-Jeah Joud jo

peaye ||am pue 186pngq o pesye Jeak mau 3y} Papels ‘Moys ajgng
19ey2IN Buyjes Buoss AiaA © O} uonIpPe Ul ‘Ua0UoD Jeyl "INO PIOS YOoIYm

no} anuD 310N Mau Sy} JO UELS Y} ISOY BUBJE AU} MES OS[e Ing

BUBIY Y]} JO} Jeah [easy mau e Jo Buiuuibaq ayy paysew Ajuo jou Ainp

- S9L°1SL 591152 091'v6S €00°2S1
- - o -
- S91°152 S91°1SL 091'v6S €00°2S1
- oso'ezt'y oso'szt'y err'e0os'e o19'91e
- S8E LY S8 LYl 801'99€" | £242's01
- 096'61 096'61 69€'61 165
v£2'96 v€2'96 109'L6 £E9'P
£6e'syi e6e'sylL sve'ivl SY0'L
9vr'989't 9vp'989'L 6€6°0VS’L L0S'sv1
= Sv8‘18e Sv8'18e v68'8se 156'2e
gor'eee gor'ece £s'iee £89°'21
2 18p'6LL L18v'6L1 0€s'991 1562t
- sie'vis'y Sle'pi8'y 209'00v'y ci9'ely
- szi'els'e SZI'ELS'e gel'gee’e 266'9L2
- 060'19€'2 060°19€'2 69¥'v91'2 129'961
- 605'vE2’L 60S'veES' | L61°0SH'L 2Ie'v8
- 18s‘92L'L 18592t 2Le'vio'L 60eCLL
- 000'92S 000°945 $59'955 gve'sl
- 00} 00l 86 4
JONVIHVA JAd 3Ad
1394an8 IVIOL 7104 ala

sjuswwo)

JAILNIONI U314V SISNAIXI 3A08Y INNIAIH L3N

334 JAILNIONI 837

S$3ISNIdX3 JA0EV 2NNIAIYH 13N

‘dX3 1034IANI TV101

QVv3HY3A0

NINQV XTYMANS
ONILVIS AHNXNT
301440 X08
SNOILVYH3dO
ONILINEVIN
FONVNIZ
JAILNOIXI
S3ASN3dX3 LO3HIANI

3INOONI TV10L
JINOONI H3HLO TVIOL

FWOONI IN3AT TVI0L

INODNI AHVTIIONY
3WNOONI IN3A3 103HI0

JONVANILLY
SIN3A3 'ON

S102 ‘08 INNI ONIANI HY3A TVOSId
1SvO3HO4 ONITI0H
VYNIHY T3ANY NVA



"yiuouws ay} 1o} jje1aA0 196pnq Jo peaye oy B Ul 8wed sasuadxa 10a1pu)

S3SN3dX3 LO3HIANI

-fioisiy euasy ul Jybiu abeianaq @ pooj Buissoib 1seybiy puooas ay) se paysiuly ani) As|jo pue
sisIA 1sed papaaoxe smoys Ylog Joj sded sad se |jeiano 186pnq jo peaye ui awed awooul Alejjiouy

JWOINI AHVTIIONY

‘llom KIaA plos Spaau09 ajgng
[SBUDIN puR anin) ASIOW Y} Y10q S B0 1896pNq o peaye oM Ul SBD SOOI JUSAT

(81£'951$) £26'858% £00°'251$
(v1¥'90€) (£85°cPpE) (oL9'91€)
990°0S| LPS'6LL SSL'LI2
0 00£°09 ££8'G9
0 0e8°cL Zle'v8
0$ 6£8'888% 60€'2LIS
0 005'se 9ve'6l
0 g 2
19\ Jold 19bpng enoy
¥102 ALA 5102 AlA 5102 Q1A
(8re'951$) £26'85$ £00°251%
(r1v'90€) (z85'cve) (019'91¢€)
990'0S1 L¥S'6LL sGL'L1e
0 00£09 26869
0 0£8'€L ZIe'v8
0$ 668'88%$ 608'2LLS
0 0052 9ve'6l
0 g 2
102 Ad 196png [enjoy
Ainp Anp Ap

JWOINI LNIAT

awoou| 18N

sasuadx3 10811py)
awoou) BuyesadQ 18y10
awooU| JaAT JBYI0
awoou| Arejjiouy
awooU| JUBAJ 10a11Q
aouepuany

SJUaAJ JO JaquinN

alA

awoouj 18N

sasuadx3 10a11puj
awosu| Buiesad 18410
BaWooU| JUaAT J3UI0
awoou| Asejjiouy
aWooU| JUaAZ 102110
aouepushy

SJUaA3] Jo JaquinN

HLNOW

:1eak soud pue 196pnq 0} pasedwiod se

aje(] 0} JESA PUR LIUOW JUSLIND 83U} Y10q 10} S)nsas Bunesado sazuewwins ajnpayoss Buimoloy ay L

¥102 ‘L€ AN A3AN3 HLNOW HO4d
SLHOITHOIH LNIWILVLS TVIONVNIL

VN3HVY T3ANV NVA



‘191renb )s| 2y Jo pua sy 4q

1931e) U0 YOBq 9q PINOYS SANUBAII PUE SITRISAE [BOLIOISIY YIM 3UI[ Ul JoBq
Suiuoo sangun Yim AIoe sy} 10J Uels [[e19A0 pooS e sem 3f “Jeaf soud jo
pesye ‘1oramoy 28pnq 3y} 0) paredwiod se suoneloadxa Jo UOYs | & [[e)
Anjioe} ay) Mes Jey) auo pue 30e|d SOA3( 10J Jeak [edSY mau e sues Ajf

- (698°667) (698°667) (L9g‘or1) (£00°€ST)

- 0

- (698°667) (698°667) (L98°9%1) (£00°€ST)

- 118°500'9 118°500'9 660'6LS"S €1L°9TH

2 SP6'6TET SY6'6TE'T 015791 SEV'LI1

- 69£°00Y 69€°00Y YOL'ELE $99°9Z

- TIL'06 TIL'06 059°6L T90°11

- L98°L90°1 L98°L90'1 L£8'610'1 0£0'8Y

2 $85°855'1 $85°85S'1 8€9°1TH'( 9b6°9€1

- 00L°TIL 00L'TLI 0vs's01 091°L

% SES1ST SES'IST SPT'EET 06C'81

- 660'v61 660'¥61 SL6'T81 I

- TH6'SOL'S TH6'SOL'S TET'TEY'S 01L'€LT

- 0SY'0zE 0St'0TE 186'60€ £9¢°01

- T6V'S8E'S T6Y'S8E'S SYT'TTL'S LYT'E9T

- THO'YTH'T TVOYTY'T 696'80€T £LO'ST1

- 0S¥°196'C 0SY'196°C LT'E18T pLISYI

- 001°'86¥ 001°86% 85T I8Y TH8'9l

- L0S L0S oLy 1€

FONVIUVA FAA IR noy 1emdY ALA
Landangd TVLOL

SjuLWWOoD)

SISNAIXA ONILVIAJO
YIAAO AINNIATY DONILVIILO LIN

J3d FALLNIODNI
SASNAJIXT JAOEYV NNIATY LAN
‘dXd ONILVIAdO TVLOL

AVIHIIAO

SATVS

01440 X014
SADIAYIAS INTAT
SNOILLVY3IdO
ONILIIAVIN
TONVNIA
JAILNOAXA
SASNALXA LOTAIANI

JNNIATY ONILVEIJO TVLOL
ANNTATE YAHLO TVLOL
ANNIATY INTAT TVIOL

ANNIATY AAVTTIONY
ANNIATY INTAT LOTUIA

AONVANALLY
SINIAT 'ON

S10Z ‘o€ ANMNS ONIANT dVIA TVOSI4
LSVOTIOd ONI'TTIOY
IDVTId SOA 3d



"puaI) © St us3s Sujyidue I3pIsuod 0y Jeak
[eos1y ay) ul A[1ea 00} [|1IS “19AamOY [[eIA0 123pnq JO peaye ul sureds sasuadxa 1va1pug

SASNILXHE LOTAIANI

-1ourenb [eosyy oy Jo pud Yy Aq S[oA3] paedpnq

0] joeq 3q pINOYS ‘JaAamoYy 193pnq 0) paredwod Se [[BI9A0 UMOP Sem SWodul Arej[1ouy

AWOINI AAVTTIONV

*a8e19A€ JUSA3 Jad 19MO] 913 Su1ISIO SIUSAD

(600°5£7$) (SHT1L1S) (£00°€S1$)
(826°L0%) (#8+°00S) (€1L°9TH)
66°1 999°C 9TT'e
008°s 000°L LET'L
$8SH01 6869L1 €LOSIL
$85°09$ ¥8S°THIS PLI‘SYIS
§59°9 ovzoz 891
61 €T 1€
Iea X IO 198png [enoy
¥10Z ALA S10ZALA SI0Z ALA
(600°5£7$) (SYTILIS) (€00°€S1$)
(826°L0%) (#8+°005) (€1L°9TY)
6v6°1 999°C 9TT'e
008°S 000°L LETL
$8Sp01 686°9L1 €LOSTI
$85°09% ¥8S°THIS PLI'SPIS
$59°9 0¥ 0T 89l
61 €T It
¥10T Ad 193png ey
Ang Aof Ang

[1e12A0 Jo Auenb 1ayS1y e yaim [[2I2A0 135pnq YIIM JUISISUOD UF SUIED SWIOOUT JUIAT

TJWOOINI INJIAT

awoou] JaN
sasuadxg 10a1pu]
swosu] SuneisdQ 1PYO
JWoou] JUIAT IYIO
swoou] Arej[iouy
JWooU] JUSAT 101
ouUEpUANY

SjusAg Jo JaqunN

dLA

awoou] 19N
sasuadxg 10a11pu]
swosuj SuneixdQ 1Yo
WOodU] AT IO
awoou] Arejjiouy
swoouf JusAg 1011
Jouepualy

SJUGAY JoO JaquInp

HINOW

:reaf Joud pue 198pnq 03 paredwos se

9)e(] 0} JE3 4 pUB IUOUI JUSLIND 3Y} Y10q 10§ synsas Sunesado sazirewwns a[npayos Suimol[of YL

S107 ‘o€ ANNL ONIANT YVIA TVOSIA
SLHOITHOIH INTFWILVLS TVIONVNIA

FAOVId SOA 3Ad



I“l

(L99) (908°zI) § (68562) $ ((X%4) (915°189) §  (bT6°OLY) $ ZunesadQ - spasooid 1N
(L'99) 908°C1 685°6C 9'81 916°ISL 9LS°€€9
691 9L 8€9 S9LE 000°09 265°CI 1yyQ/stddng
(0-001) - 1061 0¢ 00SvC SLLET soueInSU]
- - - 6'L9 000°0€ 698°L1 UV JO JUdWAIMd0L]
- - - 0'Z8 000°0€ L8Y91 Surdeospue]
- - - (T'79) 090°1€ criees S90IAISG Funnsuo)
(0'001) - 008 S'Shl 000°0¥ 062°91 sueday 93e1oAdq 7 poo]
- - - 9T 000°0t 066°8€ JRwWssassy AId
6'LY0°1 8¢8 €L (T9©) 000°9S 98°LS SIOIAIOS [BUOISSJOI]
- - - 0001 000°SL - uredure)) unoyrep
9'101 YL L89°€ (1¢) 956 11 LS9°8I11 syjauag/sadem
((R%4) 06L°€ 066t 80 000°6C1 856°€T1 sAnenIu] KISISAIQ
- - - - 000°S21 000°S2I (suodg/gAD) unayrey
sosuadxyg
- - - Sy 000°0L1 759791
- - - L6 000°06 €90°Z8 SNOJUEJ[IISTA
# $ - $ - $ (L0) 00008 $ 68508 $ 1s9193u]
SONUAAY
.GSHO
a3uey) I€/L-/T/L 1€/L-T/L aguey) 18png [eurg
a8eymaorag S10Z Ad PI0ZAL adejuadtag S10Z Ad $10T7 Ad
e-0)-aed X [enauy
pui-1ed X Areurwipag
S10Z ‘o€ dungp Suipuy 1ed X J10J SPUdL ], [€ISL]
[re3x spadadoad PN

SHUNO0IIY IAPRLSIUIWPY
ALIopNy eualy/uonudAuo)) Ayuno)) juayf-spidey] pueis)



Item 3.B.i.b.

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

CRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2014

PROUD HOME OF THE GRAND RAPIDS GRIFFINS —-2013 CALDER CUP CHAMPIONS

[20 $.€13]

CALDER CUP

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — KentCounty Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Joe Romano

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 2 98 100 100 -
ATTENDANCE 19,346 556,654 676,000 676,000 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 112,309 1,014,272 1,126,581 1,126,581 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 84,312 1,150,197 1,234,509 1,234,509 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 196,621 2,164,469 2,361,090 2,361,090 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 276,992 2,236,133 2,513,125 2,513,125 -
TOTAL INCOME 473,613 4,400,602 4,874,215 4,874,215 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,951 166,530 179,481 179,481 -
FINANCE 17,653 221,753 239,406 239,406 -
MARKETING 22,951 258,894 281,845 281,845 -
OPERATIONS 145,507 1,540,939 1,686,446 1,686,446 -
BOX OFFICE 7,045 141,248 148,293 148,293 -
LUXURY SEATING 4,633 91,601 96,234 96,234 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 591 19,369 19,960 19,960 -
OVERHEAD 105,277 1,366,108 1,471,385 1,471,385 -

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 316,610 3,806,442 4,123,050 4,123,050 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 157,003 594,160 751,165 751,185 -
LESS INCENTIVE FEE - ] - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 157,003 594,160 751,165 751,165 -
Comments: i
July not only marked the beginning of a new fiscal year for the Arena _ s o,
but also saw the arena host the start of the new Motley Crue tour General Mafsde

/

which sold out. That concert, in addition to a very strong selling Michael
Buble show, started the new year ahead of budget and well ahead
of prior year.

7



VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2014

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Other Operating Income
Indirect Expenses

Net Income

EVENT INCOME

July July July
Actual Budget FY 2014

2 3 0

19,346 25,500 0
$112,309 $88,839 $0
84,312 73,830 0
65,837 60,300 0
211,155 179,541 150,066
(316,610) (343,587) (306,414)
$157,003 $58,923 ($156,348)

YTD 2015 YTD 2015 YTD 2014
Actual Budget Prior Year

2 3 0

19,346 25,500 0
$112,309 $888,839 $0
84,312 73,830 0
65,837 60,300 0
211,155 179,541 150,066
(316,610) (343,587) (306,414)
$157,003 $858,923 ($156,348)

Event income came in well ahead of budget overall as both the Motley Crue and Michael
Buble concerts sold very well.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget overall as per caps for both shows exceeded past visits
and Motley Crue finished as the second highest grossing food & beverage night in Arena history.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in a little ahead of budget overall for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales

Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Advertising
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Current Month Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Month Ending July 31, 2014

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$92,597 $81,711 10,886 $0 $92,597 $81,711 10,886 $0
259,705 137,478 122,227 0 259,705 137,478 122,227 0

(239,993) (130,350) (109,643) 0 (239,993) (130,350) (109,643) 0
112,309 88,839 23,470 0 112,309 88,839 23,470 0
65,414 58,590 6,824 0 65,414 58,590 6,824 0
6,652 4,386 2,266 0 6,652 4,386 2,266 0
12,246 10,854 1,392 0 12,246 10,854 1,392 0
84,312 73,830 10,482 0 84,312 73,830 10,482 0
65,837 60,300 5,537 0 65,837 60,300 5,537 0
65,837 60,300 5,537 0 65,837 60,300 5,537 0
262,458 222,969 39,489 0 262,458 222,969 39,489 0
155,294 123,457 31,837 92,402 155,294 123,457 31,837 92,402
52,136 52,084 52 54,000 52,136 52,084 52 54,000
3,725 4,000 (275) 3,664 3,725 4,000 (275) 3,664
211,155 179,541 31,614 150,066 211,185 179,541 31,614 150,066
473,613 402,510 71,103 150,066 473,613 402,510 71,103 150,066
234,901 168,572 66,329 124,074 234,901 168,572 66,329 124,074
66,140 49,117 17,023 28,770 66,140 49,117 17,023 28,770
(171,219) (71,368) (99,851) (19,610) (171,219) (71,368) (99,851) (19,610)
129,822 146,321 (16,499) 133,234 129,822 146,321 (16,499) 133,234
17,149 20,928 (3,779) 17,204 17,149 20,928 (3,779) 17,204
23,151 22,535 616 32,175 23,151 22,535 616 32,175
1,473 6,800 (5,327) 3,151 1,473 6,800 (5,327) 3,161
22,934 20,674 2,260 23,227 22,934 20,674 2,260 23,227
27,894 15,417 12,477 10,439 27,894 15,417 12,477 10,439
7,471 10,727 (3,256) 2,698 7,471 10,727 (3.256) 2,698
72,696 85,997 (13,301) 70,514 72,696 856,997 (13,301) 70,514
14,020 14,188 (168) 13,772 14,020 14,188 (168) 13,772
316,610 343,587 (26,977) 306,414 316,610 343,587 (26,977) 306,414
157,003 58,923 98,080 (156,348) 157,003 58,923 98,080 (156,348)
157,003 58,923 98,080 (156,348) 167,003 58,923 98,080 (156,348)




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Event Summary
For the One Month Ended July 31, 2014

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert 2 3 19,346 25,500 262,458 222,969
Team Home Games
Other
GRAND TOTALS 2 3 19,346 25,500 262,458 222,969
As Percentage of Overall
Family Show 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sporting Event 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Concert 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Team Home Games 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabllities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2014

ASSETS

5,815,359
706,060
56,975

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

603,741
473,078
2,734,021
3,248,189

0

68,961
(706,602)
157,006

$6,578,394

$6,578,394

$7,059,029

($480,635)

$6,578,394




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of July 31,2014

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
DeVos Place
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

102,014
37,550
3,378

(347,538)
857,122

20,034

33,500

706,060



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 751,165 (299,869) 451,296 387,065
Benchmark ++ 750,000 750,000
Excess 751,165 (299,869) (298,704) (362,935)
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 167,741 167,741 343,540 336,474
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,874,215 5,705,942 10,580,157 10,646,789
Benchmark Revenue 5,000,000 4,400,000 9,400,000 9,300,000
Revenue Excess (125,785) 1,305,942 1,180,157 1,346,789
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 167,741 167,741 343,540 336,474

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

++ If net revenues above expenses exceeds $700,000, SMG is eligible for 75% of the incentive fee.



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2014

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — KentCounty Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Joe Romano

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

_ An SMG Managed Facllity

Item 3.B.i.b.



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
31 476 507 507 .
16,842 481,258 498,100 498,100 -
148,174 2,813,276 2,961,450 2,961,450 .
115,073 2,308,969 2,424,042 2,424,042 -
263,247 5,122,245 5,385,492 5,385,492 -
10,463 309,987 320,450 320,450 -
273,710 5,432,232 5,705,942 5,705,942 -
11,124 182,975 194,099 194,099 .
18,290 233,245 251,535 251,535 -
7,160 105,540 112,700 112,700 .
136,946 1,421,638 1,558,584 1,558,584 -
48,030 1,019,837 1,067,867 1,067,867 -
11,062 79,650 90,712 90,712 .
26,665 373,704 400,369 400,369 -
167,435 2,162,510 2,329,945 2,329,945 -
426,713 5,579,099 6,005,811 6,005,811 -
(153,003) (146,867) (299,869) (299,869) -
0 -
(153,003) (146,867) (299,869) (299,869) -

July starts a new fiscal year for DeVos Place and one that saw the facility
fall a little short of expectations as compared to the budget, however, ahead
of prior year. It was a good overall start for the facility with utilities coming
back in line with historical averages and revenues should be back on target

by the end of the 1st quarter.

A/w

N




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2014
Number of Events 31 23 19
Attendance 16,842 20,240 6,655
Direct Event Income $148,174 $142,584 $60,585
Ancillary Income 115,073 176,989 104,585
Other Event Income 7,237 7,000 5,800
Other Operating Income 3,226 2,666 1,949
Indirect Expenses (426,713) (500,484) (407,928)
Net Income ($153,003) ($171,245) ($235,009)
YTD YTD 2015 YTD 2015 YTD 2014

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 31 23 19
Attendance 16,842 20,240 6,655
Direct Event Income $148,174 $142,584 $60,585
Ancillary Income 115,073 176,989 104,585
Other Event Income 7,237 7,000 5,800
Other Operating Income 3,226 2,666 1,949
Indirect Expenses (426,713) (500,484) (407,928)
Net Income ($153,003) ($171,245) ($235,009)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in consistent with budget overall with a higher quantity of overall
events offsetting the lower per event average.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income was down overall as compared to budget, however, should be back to
budgeted levels by the end of the fiscal quarter.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget overall, however, still too early in the fiscal
year to consider anything seen as a trend.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Anclllary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Tetephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Intemet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Anclilary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Aflocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income{Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

For the Month Ending July 31, 2014

DeVos Place
Income Statement

Current Month  Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$180,538 $1568,840 $21,698 $72,096 $180,538 $158,840 $21,698 $72,096
87,043 75,254 11,789 40,887 87,043 75,254 11,789 40,887
(119,407) (91,510) (27,897) (52,398) (119,407) (91,510) (27,897) (52,398)
148,174 142,584 5,590 60,585 148,174 142,584 5,590 60,585
7,164 8,699 485 1,821 7,164 6,699 465 1,821
46,630 59,252 (12,622) 38,756 486,830 59,252 (12,6822) 38,756
1,102 425 877 0 1,102 425 677 0
3,725 20,055 (16,330) 12,785 3,726 20,055 (16,330) 12,785
0 0 0 338 0 0 0 338
7,001 42,048 (35,047) 12,408 7,001 42,048 (35,047) 12,408
26,091 30,436 (4,345) 31,864 26,091 30,436 (4,345) 31,864
14,574 9,110 5,464 4,188 14,574 9,110 5,464 4,188
8,786 8,964 (178) 2,425 8,786 8,964 (178) 2,425
115,073 176,989 (61,916) 104,586 115,073 176,989 (61,916) 104,585
7,237 7,000 237 5,800 7,237 7,000 237 5,800
7,237 7,000 237 5,800 7,237 7,000 237 5,800
270,484 326,573 (56,089) 170,970 270,484 326,573 (56,089) 170,970
1,341 1,333 8 1,481 1,341 1,333 8 1,461
1,885 1,333 552 488 1,885 1,333 552 488
3,228 2,666 560 1,949 3,226 2,666 560 1,949
273,710 329,239 (65,529) 172,919 273,710 329,239 (65,529) 172,919
169,278 269,202 (99,924) 164,082 169,278 269,202 (99,924) 164,082
53,786 78,248 (24,462) 46,860 63,786 78,248 (24,462) 46,860
(75,311) (148,656) 73,345 (55,851) (75,311) (148,656) 73,345 (55,851)
147,753 198,794 (51,041) 145,091 147,753 198,794 (51,041) 145,091
29,887 20,718 9,169 28,021 29,887 20,718 9,169 28,021
20,829 28,110 (7.281) 26,936 20,829 28,110 (7.281) 26,936
28,882 9,960 18,922 4,831 28,882 9,960 18,922 4,831
41,703 41,350 353 32,610 41,703 41,350 353 32,810
8,624 20,975 (12,351) 11,499 8,624 20,975 (12,351) 11,499
12,902 16,322 (3,420) 13,4368 12,902 16,322 (3,420) 13,436
122,113 150,087 (27,954) 131,732 122,113 150,087 (27,954) 131,732
14,020 14,188 (168) 13,772 14,020 14,188 (168) 13,772
426,713 500,484 (73,771) 407,928 426,713 500,484 (73,771) 407,928
(153,003) (171,245) 18,242 (235,009) (163,003) (171,245) 18,242 (235,009)
(1563,003) {171,245) 18,242 (235,009) (153,003) (171,248) 18,242 (235,009)

4



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the One Month ended July 31, 2014

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 23 18 13,550 17,280 238,532 279,288
Consumer/Gated Shows
DeVos Performance Hall 4 1 1,767 1,250 11,870 17,800
Banquets 1 1 375 650 3,351 10,076
Meetings 2 2 450 700 11,067 12,694
Other 1 1 700 360 5,665 6,715
GRAND TOTALS 31 23 16,842 20,240 270,484 326,573
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 74.19% 78.26% 80.45% 85.38% 88.19% 85.52%
Consumer/Gated Shows 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Devos Performance Hall 12.90% 4.35% 10.49% 6.18% 4.39% 5.45%
Ballroom Exclusive 323% 4.35% 2.23% 3.21% 1.24% 3.09%
Meetings 6.45% 8.70% 2.67% 3.46% 4.09% 3.89%

Other 323% 435% 4.16% 1.78% 2.09% 2.06%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of July 31,2014

ASSETS

1,200,284
765,190
48,492

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

147,684
440,893

69,595
729,488

$2,013,966

$2,013,966

107,698
671,611
(153,002)

$1,387,660

$626,306

$2,013,966




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of July 31,2014

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

52,754
15,655

3,725
26,090
348,132
226,426

69,039

23,369

765,190



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 751,165 (299,869) 451,296 387,065
Benchmark ++ 750,000 750,000
Excess 751,165 (299,869) (298,704) (362,935)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 167,741 167,741 343,540 336,474
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,874,215 5,705,942 10,580,157 10,646,789
Benchmark Revenue 5,000,000 4,400,000 9,400,000 9,300,000
Revenue Excess (125,785) 1,305,942 1,180,157 1,346,789
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 167,741 167,741 343,540 336,474

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

++ If net revenues above expenses exceeds $700,000, SMG is eligible for 75% of the incentive fee.



Iltem 3.B.ii.

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

AUDIT PLANNING

June 30, 2014

ma“‘ St dBiatiite o~

e

The following communication was prepared as part of our audit, has consequential limitations, and is intended solely for the
information and use of those charged with governance (e.g., Finance Committee) and, if appropriate, management of the
Authority, and is not intended and shall not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO Intemational Limited, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

|IBDO




Tel: 616-774-7000 200 Ottawa Avenue NW, Suite 300
Fax: 616-776-3680 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503
g www.bdo.com

August 25, 2014

Members of the Finance Committee
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding matters related to the
financial statement audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to
your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. This report provides an
overview of our plan for the audit of the financial statements of Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014,
including a summary of our overall objectives for the audit, and the nature, scope and timing of
the planned audit work.

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, we will be happy to meet with
you at your convenience.

Respectfully,

220 wsy LoP

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO Intemational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



Discussion Outline

Page
CLENE SEIVICE TEAM 1.uiuuiiniiiiiiitiiiiiiitierneerterteerteerneeateesenneeateernesenscnnsnneenseennssnnsennsens 3
Management’s ReSPONSTDILIIES . ... v.iuiiiiieriiiiriiiiieieir et et e eeeneneeeensensansnnennsnenns 4
ENGAgemMENt ODJECLIVES «.vueuiniiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiieiiieireren et enenenseeneensnsnsnsnsnssssnsnssnsnssnsnnns 5
Overall Audit Strategy - Planned SCOPE......c.cuiiiiiiniieiiieinittene e ieereneterneensnessensensesssnssnsnnnns 6
Overall Audit TIMELINE ...cuuiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e er ettt eneetneennennssnnenns 7
Independence COMMUNICALION ...ivuieriuiereetiieeteeiertrieeteeneneeeensenssnsnnsenensesensnssnssnssnssnssnnnes 8
Significant Accounting and REPOIting MAtLerS . ......vuuuiuuveinirnieneeneneeeeenereereeeneereenersessnessesnnens 9






Client Service Team

Our client service team members for this year’s audit services are listed in the organizational chart
below. As a matter of policy, we attempt to provide continuity of service to our clients to the greatest
extent possible. Where engagement team rotation is necessary, we will determine the appropriate new
individual to be assigned to the engagement based on particular experience, expertise and engagement
needs.

Engagement Director
Patricia Duperron

Director
John LaFramboise

Senior Associate
Joelle Vos

3
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Management’s Responsibilities

Management is responsible for preparing, with the oversight of those charged with governance, the
financial statements and disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as of June 30, 2014. Management’s responsibilities also include the
following:

» Establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and proper accounting
records.

» Identify and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

» Safeguard the Authority’s assets.

» Select appropriate accounting principles.

» Use reasonable judgments and accounting estimates.

» Ensure there are no significant financial statement disclosure deficiencies.

* Make all financial records and related information available to BDO.

* Record material audit adjustments, and affirm to BDO that the impact of uncorrected
misstatements, if any, is immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole.

» Provide BDO with a letter confirming representations made during the audit.

4
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Engagement Objectives

Our objectives with respect to the audit of the Authority’s annual financial statements are summarized
below:

« Plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud. An audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America does not provide absolute
assurance relative to or any guarantee of the accuracy of the financial statements and is subject to
the inherent risk that errors or fraud, if they exist, may not be detected.

» Obtain a sufficient understanding of the Authority’s internal control to plan the audit of the
financial statements. However, such understanding is required for the purpose of determining our
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

« Communicate our responsibilities in relation to the audit and establish an understanding of the
terms of the engagement, including our engagement letter to you.

» Provide an overview of the overall audit strategy and planned scope and timing of the audit.

= Inquire of the Finance Committee about risks of material misstatement, including fraud risks, and
whether the Finance Committee is aware of other matters that may be relevant to the audit such as
violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, and complaints or concerns raised regarding
accounting or auditing matters.

» Consult regarding accounting and reporting matters as needed throughout the year.

» Communicate with management and the Finance Committee regarding significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses identified during our audit, and other timely observations that are significant
and relevant to the financial reporting process.

*  Work with management toward timely issuance of financial statements.
* Maintain our independence with respect to the Authority.

« Ensure that the Finance Committee is kept appropriately informed in a timely manner of the
Authority’s financial reporting matters; comply with professional standards as to communications
with those charged with governance.

5
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Overall Audit Strategy - Planned Scope

Overall, our audit strategy is to focus on higher risk areas of material misstatement (whether due to error
or fraud) and other areas of concern for management and the Finance Committee.

Our audit strategy includes consideration of:

Prior year audit results along with interim results, including discussion with management and those
charged with governance regarding the Authority’s operations, business activities and risks.

Inherent risk within the Authority (i.e., the susceptibility of the financial statements to material
error or fraud) before recognizing the effectiveness of the control systems.

A continual assessment of materiality thresholds based upon qualitative and quantitative factors
affecting the Authority.

Recent developments within the industry, regulatory environment and general economic conditions.
Recently issued and effective accounting and financial reporting guidance.

The Authority’s significant accounting policies and procedures, including those requiring significant
management judgments and estimates and those related to significant unusual transactions.

The control environment, risk management and monitoring processes, and the possibility that the
control systems and procedures may fail to prevent or detect a material error or fraud.

Information about systems and the computer environment in which financial records and related
systems operate.

Based upon our initial assessment, our audit will entail a combination of testing controls for reliance and
substantive testing. The primary areas of focus in our overall audit strategy include the following:

Fraud risk

Cash and investments

Revenue and receivables
Capital assets

Accrued liabilities and expenses
Analytical procedures

6
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Overall Audit Timeline

The following represents our anticipated schedule with regard to our audit of the annual financial
statements of the Authority:

T T R RRITH] aos | sev [ et | o
v

Understand the Business
Planning Meeting <
Assess Overall Controls

Determine Nature and Extent of Testing

Develop Audit Plans

AT T

Substantive Testing
Review Draft of Financial Statements

Release of Final Financial Statements and Opinion

7
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Independence Communication

Our engagement letter to you dated August 18, 2014 describes our responsibilities in accordance with
professional standards and certain regulatory authorities with regard to independence and the
performance of our services. This letter also stipulates the responsibilities of the Authority with respect
to independence as agreed to by the Authority. Please refer to that letter for further information.

8
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Significant Accounting and Reporting
Matters |

NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB STATEMENT NO. 65, ITEMS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED AS ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

This statement requires certain items to be reclassified as deferred outflows or deferred inflows:

Difference between the re-acquisition price and the net carrying amount resutting from refunding
debt should be reported as deferred outflows or deferred inflows.

Property taxes received before the levy period should be reported as deferred inflows.

Debt issuance costs should be recognized as an expense.

Can no longer use the term “deferred revenue” in the financial statements.

Effective date: year ended June 30, 2014.

GASB STATEMENT NO. 69, GOVERNMENT COMBINATIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

This statement applies to mergers, acquisitions or transfers of operations, but does not apply to the
acquisition of another organization that continues to exist as a separate entity or acquisition of an entity
interest in a separate entity.

Government merger - a combination of legally separate entities where no significant considered

is exchanged and:

o Two or more governments cease to exist as legally separate entities and are combined to form
one new government, or

o One or more legally separate governments cease to exist and their operations are absorbed
into one or more continuing governments.

Government acquisition - a combination in which one government acquires another (or the

operations of another) in exchange for significant consideration.

Transfer of operations - a government combination involving the operations of a government with

no significant consideration exchanged.

Effective date: year ending June 30, 2015.

GASB STATEMENT NO. 70, ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR NONEXCHANGE
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

A nonexchange financial guarantee - is a guarantee of an obligation of a legally separate entity,
including component units, which requires a guarantor to indemnify a third-party holder under
specified conditions.

Requires a government to recognize a liability when there are qualitative factors that make it
more likely than not (more than 50%) that the government will make a payment on the guarantee.
Requires recognition of expense and liability in full accrual statements, but is subject to
expenditure recognition criteria in modified accrual statements.

Effective date: year ended June 30, 2014.

9
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Get to Know BDO

BDO USA, LLP is a national professional services firm providing assurance, tax, financial advisory, and
consulting services to a wide range of publicly traded and privately held companies. We are guided by our
core values: put people first; be exceptional: every day, every way; embrace change; empowerment
through knowledge; and choose accountability.

Our culture and core values reflect how
we manage our work, our relationships

and ourselves. \\_

For more than 100 years, we have provided quality service and leadership through the active involvement
of our most experienced and committed professionals.

The firm serves clients through 49 offices and more than 400 independent alliance firm locations
nationwide. As an independent Member Firm of BDO International Limited, BDO serves multinational
clients through a global network of 1,264+ offices in 144 countries. For further information, please refer
to http://www.bdo.com.

BDO commits significant resources to keep our professionals and our clients up to date on current and
evolving technical, governance, industry, and reporting developments. Our thought leadership consists of
quarterly email updates, publications, surveys, practice aids, and tools that span a broad spectrum of
topics that impact financial reporting, as well as corporate governance. Our focus is not simply to
announce changes in technical guidance, regulations or emerging business trends, but rather expound on
how such changes may impact our clients’ businesses. Through our various webinar series, we reach a
broad audience and provide brief, engaging, just-in-time training that we make available in a variety of
ways to meet the needs of your busy schedule. The following provides a sample of our offerings.

AC’SENSES™ WEBINARS

An educational series designed to assist those charged with governance (e.g., Audit Committees) and
financial executives in keeping up to date on the latest corporate governance, risk management and
financial reporting developments. The program is multi-faceted and consists of complimentary CPE
webinars, podcasts and archived self-study courses, covering both broad and specific topics of interest,
publications and links to various BDO and external resources. Visit www.bdo.com/acsense.

BDO KNOWLEDGE TAX WEBINAR SERIES

A monthly series providing insights and perspectives on the tax issues most important to our clients and
their businesses. Visit www.bdo.com/bdoknows/tax-resource-center/tax-webinar.aspx.

For additional information and links to various resources and tools, visit www.bdo.com/bdoknows.

To subscribe to BDO publications, please register at BDO’s Subscription Center at
https://subscriptions.bdo.com/ or RSS Feeds at http://www.bdo.com/rss/ to have our latest news and
publications delivered directly to your desktop.

10
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Get to Know BDO

BOARD REFLECTIONS

The BDO Board Reflections resource center includes BDO’s proprietary studies, publications, practice
aids, and educational programs to keep board members of both public and private companies up to date
on emerging issues and trends to assist in fulfilling their corporate oversight responsibilities. The resource
center contains customized information for the various committees of the board. For example, refer to
our Effective Audit Committees in the Ever Changing Marketplace practical guide and related tools. Visit
http://www.bdo.com/library/boardreflections.aspx.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING MATTERS

A quarterly digest of final and proposed financial accounting standards designed to help audit
committees, boards and financial executives keep up to date on the latest corporate governance and
financial reporting developments.

CLIENT ADVISORIES

Concise documents that provide timely commentary, analysis and insights on events and trends of interest
to management and boards of directors.

TAX NEWSLETTERS AND ALERTS

Updates with respect to federal, state, local, expatriate, and international developments, along with
other specific tax planning and strategy considerations including specific practice areas such as
compensation and benefits, private client and individual filer services, transfer pricing, Foreign Account
Tax Compliance Act, etc.

TECHNICAL RESEARCH TOOLS

BDO uses Accounting Research Manager™ (ARM) as a primary source of insightful interpretations on GAAP,
GAAS and Securities and Exchange Commission rules. ARM is updated daily and is considered to be one of
the timeliest and most comprehensive online databases of analytical interpretations of accounting,
auditing and SEC matters. Access to ARM, and a number of other research tools, provides each
professional the technical research capability to respond immediately to client-specific technical issues.

BDO KNOWS FLASH REPORTS

Briefs about select technical and regulatory developments and emerging issues are made immediately
available to BDO professionals and to clients.

BDO KNOWS FINANCIAL REPORTING LETTERS

Publications containing more in-depth discussions and practical guidance on technical guidance affecting
both public and private entities.

INDUSTRY NEWSLETTERS, ALERTS, REPORTS, PROPRIETARY STUDIES AND SURVEYS

A variety of publications depicting specific industry issues, emerging trends and developments.

11
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



Get to Know BDO

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE

Industry experience has emerged at the top of the list of what businesses need and expect from their
accountants and advisors. The power of industry experience is perspective - perspective we bring to help

you best leverage your own capabilities and resources.

BDO’s industry focus is part of who we are and how we serve our clients, and has been for over a century.
We demonstrate our experience through knowledgeable professionals, relevant client work and
participation in the industries we serve.

For further information on the following BDO industries, please visit http://www.bdo.com./industries/.

Construction

Financial Institutions & Specialty Finance
Financial Services

Gaming, Hospitality & Leisure
Government Contracting

Healthcare

Insurance

Manufacturing & Distribution
Natural Resources

Nonprofit & Education
Private Equity

Public Sector

Real Estate

Retail & Consumer Products
Technology & Life Sciences

12
AUDIT PLANNING - JUNE 30, 2014



DEVOSPLACE

Item 4

WEEKLY
DATE EVENT NAME EST. ATTEND
THU.. SEPT 4 GFS Sales & Marketing Leadership Conference 500
FRI SEPT 5 Governors Highway Safety Association 2014 Annual N/A
Meeting
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show N/A
SAT. SEPT 6 Governors Highway Safety Association 2014 Annual N/A
Meeting
REAL COMEDIANS OF HOLLYWOOD
SUSAN G KOMEN RACE FOR THE CURE
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show N/A
SUN. SEPT 7 Governors Highway Safety Association 2014 Annual 450-500
Meeting
SPARTAN STORES FRESH SHOW
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show N/A
MON. SEPT 8 | Governors Highway Safety Association 2014 Annual 450-500
Meeting
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show N/A
2014 Healing Our Waters Conference N/A
TUE. SEPT 9 Governors Highway Safety Association 2014 Annual 450-500
Meeting
2014 Healing Our Waters Conference 400
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show N/A
DAVE RAMSEY SETUP 0
WED. SEPT 10 | 2014 Healing Our Waters Conference 400
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show 1,800-2,000
DAVE RAMSEY: ENTRELEADERSHIP | - DAY
THU.. SEPT 11 | 2014 Healing Our Waters Conference 400
SpartanNash 2014 Fresh Show 1,800 - 2,000
DAVE RAMSEY: THE LEGACY JOURNEY
FRI. SEPT 12 BIG “T” FALL LEADERSHIP
City Managers Meeting 40
West Michigan Mom’s Sale N/A
SAT.SEPT 13 | BIG “T” FALL LEADERSHIP
HCAM/MCAL Annual Convention Expo N/A
Steppin’ Out for Scholarships 400




WEEKLY

West Michigan Mom’s Sale

1,000-2,000

RIDGEVIEW INDUSTRIES BANQUET

SUN. SEPT 14

BIG “T” FALL LEADERSHIP

HCAM/MCAL Annual Convention Expo

600

TUE. SEPT 15

HCAM/MCAL Annual Convention Expo

600

TUE. SEPT 16

HCAM/MCAL Annual Convention Expo

600

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY CLASSICAL I:
BEETHOVEN’S FIFTH

WED. SEPT 17

2014 ANNUAL MEETING - STATE BAR OF
MICHIGAN

AFD WEST MICHIGAN HOLIDAY BEVERAGE
SHOW

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY CLASSICAL 1:
BEETHOVEN’S FIFTH

THU.. SEPT 18

2014 ANNUAL MEETING - STATE BAR OF
MICHIGAN

IBP- Gut Brain

240

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY CLASSICAL 1:
BEETHOVEN’S FIFTH

FRI. SEPT 19

2014 ANNUAL MEETING - STATE BAR OF
MICHIGAN

METRO HEALTH HOSPITAL DINNER

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY CLASSICAL I:
BEETHOVEN'’S FIFTH

SAT. SEPT 20

METRO HEALTH HOSPITAL DINNER

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY CLASSICAL I:
BEETHOVEN’S FIFTH

SUN. SEPT 21

MON. SEPT 22

PROPERTY AUCTION

TUE. SEPT 23

BCBS EVENT

WED. SEPT 24

BCBS EVENT

The Garden Center Group Fall Event

N/A

PHARMACY CONFERENCE - SPARTAN
STORES

GLOBAL TR/QA/CPR CONFERENCE




WEEKLY

THU. SEPT 25 | The Garden Center Group Fall Event 200

PHARMACY CONFERENCE - SPARTAN
STORES

GLOBAL TR/QA/CPR CONFERENCE

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY POPS 1:
DANCING AND ROMANCING

FRI. SEPT 26 GLOBAL BUSINESS ALLIANCE

BRIDAL SHOW OF WEST MICHIGAN

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY POPS 1:
DANCING AND ROMANCING

SAT. SEPT 27 | GLOBAL BUSINESS ALLIANCE

BRIDAL SHOW OF WEST MICHIGAN

MEDICAL EDUCATION HENRY FORD
HOSPITAL MEETING

BOARD MEETING - LAKE TRUST CREDIT
UNION

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY POPS 1:
DANCING AND ROMANCING

SUN. SEPT 28 | GLOBAL BUSINESS ALLIANCE

BOARD MEETING - LAKE TRUST CREDIT
UNION

GRAND RAPIDS SYMPHONY POPS 1:
DANCING AND ROMANCING

MON. SEPT 29 | JOSPEH AND THE AMAZING TECHICOLOR
DREAM COAT

TUE. SEPT 30 | 2014 ANNUAL CONVENTION MI ASSOCIATION
OF REALTORS

JOSPEH AND THE AMAZING TECHICOLOR
DREAM COAT




VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

DATE ‘14 EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION

Thur, Sep4 | Available

Fri, Sep 5 Available

Sat, Sep 6 Available

Sun, Sep 7 Black Keys KP Arena 8:00 PM Performance

Mon, Sep 8 | The Eagles KP Arena 8:00 PM Performance

Tue, Sep 9 Available

Wed, Sep 10 | Available

Thur, Sep 11 | Available

Fri, Sep 12 Available

Sat, Sep 13 Available

Sun, Sep 14 | Available

Mon, Sep 15 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 8:00 AM Load-in

Tue, Sep 16 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 8:00 AM Load-in

Wed, Sep 17 { Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 8:00 AM Load-in

Thur, Sep 18 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 7:00 PM Performance

Fri, Sep 19 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 7:00 PM Performance

Sat, Sep 20 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 11:00 PM Performance
3:00 PM Performance
7:00 PM Performance

Sun, Sep 21 | Ringling Bros. Circus KP Arena 1:00 PM Performance
5:00 PM Performance




